Local Mental Health Board Meeting

Wednesday, May 1st, 2024

In Person with Hybrid Option for Public

Members Present: Robin Rainwater, Nicki King, Jonathan Raven, Maria Simas, Sara Gaines, Sue Jones, Melanie Klinkamon, John Archuleta, Brad Anderson, Kimberly Mitchell, Chris Bulkeley, Joe Galvan, Meg Blankinship

Members Absent: Dee Olivarez

CALL TO ORDER

Welcome and Introductions: Meeting called to order at 6:02 pm by Jonathan Raven

Public Comment:

Jen Boschee-Danzer, Executive Director with NAMI Yolo-Upcoming NAMI Events:

- May 7th Lunch and Learn presentation. She will send out ZOOM Link.
- May 9TH Hope and Resilience Dinner in Davis. Tickets are sold out. May open up a few tickets in the next few days.
- June 11th will have kickoff party for NAMI Walks at Woodland Community College on September 8th.
- May 1st Big Day of Giving Begins. Make your donations. Opens at midnight.

Correspondence: NONE

Approval of Agenda: motion to approve Chris Bulkeley, 2nd Maria Simas

| Yea "I" | Nay | Abstention |
|---------|-----|------------|
| 13 | 0 | 0 |

Motion: Approved

Approval of Minutes from April 3, 2024: motion to approve Chris Bulkeley, 2nd Brad Anderson

| Yea "I" | Nay | Abstention |
|---------|-----|------------|
| 13 | 0 | |

Motion: Approved

Member Announcements: NONE

Chair Report:

Time to vote on new officers. Unsure of where Maria and Sue are at, and I am more than happy to pass the baton to someone else. Would like to create an ad hoc committee to figure out recommendations for our officers for next year. If no one wants to be chair, I would consider doing it. I don't want

someone to not decide to do it because they think I still want to remain as chair. Looking for a few people.

Correspondence: None

Strategic Planning Follow-up: Reviewed document created by Brittany Peterson.

Jonathan Raven-we are going to get these on the calendar and schedule some presenters on the top seven issues.

Karleen Jakowski-there are some standing items from HHSA that we think should be brought to this board annually. They include budget updates, regular timelines for MHSA process so we can build that into long-range planning. The requirements for the deliverables of the Local Mental Health Board include the Data Notebook and the Annual Report. Discussed really building out structures of requirements first and then what needs to be completed by this board. Then that will give the board a good sense of where there is opportunity to fill in with presentations, topics, and study sessions that the board is interested in from the top areas. Long-range planning calendar will be a great tool to carry on each year. It's a great tool for incoming chair. Christina and Karleen will work on some of the deliverables.

Nicki King-relative to the list, should we add Public Guardian? These are the most vulnerable in the county. If someone else looked at that they might make the connection from SB 43 to Public Guardian, and it should be a priority.

Chris Bulkeley-we have SB 43 on the list that involves Public Guardian, we want to make sure Public Guardian has enough resources to provide services and implement SB 43.

Jonathan Raven-we will be updating this every year, and I agree PG should be a priority.

Melanie Klinkamon-does SB 43 also include Care Court?

Jonathan Raven-no, they could be under a care plan but not a conservatorship.

Melanie Klinkamon-does not understand how Care Court could operate without inclusion of Public Guardian.

Jonathan Raven-if all other interventions fail, they could end up with a referral to conservator's office.

Karleen Jakowski-will prepare some information she can share on Care Court and include in next Mental Health Directors Report.

Brad Anderson-agrees PG is important to include in our strategic plan and is glad 5150 is number one priority.

Nicki King-to the extent this is a working document, if we were going to share these priorities with someone, they would wonder what was happening with public guardian.

Jonathan Raven-do we want to change the label for SB 43 to SB 43/Public Guardian/SB 43 Implementation?

Jim Provenza-Public Guardian doesn't even have the funding to do work now and SB 43 is going to heavily impact, so the board may want to advocate at a meeting, write a letter. It sounds like we need twice the number to do the Public Guardian job. So Local Mental Health Board can come to support the budget.

Jonathan Raven-we did weigh in at the last meeting. Jonathan wrote a letter and presented at Board of Supervisors meeting. Supervisor Provenza is one of the biggest supporters of funding Public Guardian.

Karleen Jakowski-the request we put in is for two additional Public Guardian staff for current caseloads, and that does not account for the increase that will be seen with SB 43. We wouldn't be requesting in this budget year but next fiscal year, so this is our ramp-up approach to getting it fully staffed. Budget presentation on May 7th, and HHSA is doing data follow-up for class compensation comparison, caseload staffing. We will figure out that piece, and not sure when the CAO is expecting that.

Karleen Jakowski-my understanding is there is a budget presentation at the May 7th meeting, and we are doing some additional follow-up at the request of CAO office with some data with some comparable counties that we use for class compensation comparison. So, there's specific data we are looking at: caseload, staffing, and things like that. Our team will be working on that data. Not sure when CAO is expecting that.

Jonathan Raven-will this board have another meeting before the BOS needs input? If the critical meeting is after our next meeting, then it won't be a problem because we have our meeting in June.

Chris Bulkeley-will we be able to get some data from Karleen on the work they are doing now to collect the data. Will we be able to use some of it as public comment? (Karleen will prepare follow up presentation to provide some of the data collected.)

Karleen Jakowski-is happy to share data but not sure what the plan is by CAO office, so she can't speak to that. She will follow up with Agency Director.

Jonathan Raven-just received email from Tara Thronson that states there will be some sort of resolution for LMHB, so Jonathan will be there on May 7th. Jonathan states he or someone else can comment on behalf of the board to support the funding.

Bylaws Discussion-

Jonathan Raven-we are going to have some bylaws changes as a result of Prop 1 in regard to make-up of the board. We will need someone to represent Transition Age Youth, and a representative from a local school district. This change will become effective January 1, 2025. We are still working on our amendments, and one of the issues that had come up, and we discussed with Theresa Comstock, was standing committees. There was a lot of discussion around standing committees which require us to adhere to Brown Act which makes meeting really challenging. The question is whether we want to have three standing committees or whether some of those committees can become ad hoc which do not

require Brown Act guidelines. Maria will continue the discussion and once we review and talk about it, if people want to make a motion to change the bylaws, we can entertain that, and if we want to keep them as is we can do that as well.

Maria Simas-for the discussion, I took exactly what was in the bylaws, and so I just want to refresh what the bylaws currently say and then briefly discuss Brown Act, how it impacts what we should be doing in these committees, and then the rest will be discussed. Current bylaw regarding committees was read to the board. Brown Act rules and communication guidelines when Teresa Comstock came to the board, she added additional details in terms of the budget that we should be asking for regular input from HHSA, so we should be getting that on regular basis anyway. In addition, we do need to make sure that we are having our Annual Report and Data Notebook report, which is not listed for our Communication and Education Committee. She also noted that some of these meetings can be held by ad hoc. As for Program Committee, I won't go into that because we have representative here who can speak more to what's occurring. Theresa did specify if it's going to be a group that meets on regular basis it needs to be a standing committee.

Supervisor Provenza-if it's something that isn't going to always be there, it can be held as ad hoc.

Brad Anderson-were we wrong to send out and ask questions in our Program Committee, because some questions were asked?

Maria Simas-my understanding is that you can send out information, but you cannot ask for input on issues that are going to come up on a vote.

Jonathan Raven-I think it's issues that are going to come up for a vote, those are the issues we cannot have a discussion with the committee absent the full committee and noticed on the Brown Act.

Brad Anderson-we need to make that strict rule, so we don't make errors on that guideline.

Chris Bulkeley-we had productivity working on Bylaws Ad Hoc Committee that if we had to follow Brown Act rules that would be a nightmare. If we have ad hoc committee to prepare the annual report, we will be able to develop that more efficiently. We should look at the number of standing committees we have, as it may be excessive and burdensome. If you are meeting on regular item, then standing committee is useful. We are all volunteers, and we want to be productive with our time.

Maria Simas-to clarify, if there is a group that will meet on a regular basis, that needs to be standing committee, but other discussions such as budget can be held through ad hoc.

Joe Galvan-the issue is that I have seen standing committee meetings that could have been ad hoc. Ad hoc should be for the purpose of problem-solving tasks assigned by board to bring back to us. I agree standing committees keep people from volunteering. Ad hoc allows us to look at one piece and then we may look at having another committee. Ad hoc's specific narrowed views are more appropriate. If I am on a standing committee, it may prevent me from participating in another committee, but if held through an ad hoc, there is opportunity to be involved in more areas.

Supervisor Provenza-the key is to have a specific task and then come back with a recommendation to share with board. For example, the chair of Board of Supervisors changes each year. The chair holds an ad hoc for discussing the current budget year, and that of course changes each year.

Sue Jones-when we tried to do the Annual Report with a standing committee, we didn't make any progress. Annual Report needs to be ad hoc.

Melanie Klinkamon-when we have something that needs to get finished, that's an ad hoc. It feels like standing committees are an opportunity for our community to get involved, so we need to be careful that we don't have meetings outside of the Brown Act where we want community input. Identifying where we want community input and then developing standing committee around that. I noticed some people don't know we exist and what our role is. The Brown Act was created so the community could have a voice. I'm concerned if we don't have anything open to public that's not the right thing to do.

Maria Simas-not all of these and maybe look at each standing committee separately.

Nicki King-one reason I thought Budget should be a standing committee is that there was a firestorm with previous MHSA budget. NAMI had voiced concerns that they were not given enough of a voice. Thought standing committee would help clear up the confusion that existed in the past.

Karleen Jakowski-I would have to go in and gather numbers to see how many community engagement workgroups we have held. We do a lot more leading up to the three-year plan, whereas annual plan is updates to the current three-year plan. It can be adjusted where some things aren't working and need to be adjusted. I believe they hold at least 4 virtual community engagement workgroups. I can speak to this last community engagement process. It had incredibly poor engagement, and often our staff outnumbered our community participants. A lot of what we do is get feedback from community about what their priorities are and what their needs are. We identify the priorities, receive feedback, and put responses together. The Local Mental Health Board reviews and holds the Public Meeting open for public response, and then it goes back for updates and is submitted to the board.

Jonathan Archuleta-problem we had last time is we wanted the three-year plan a little earlier so we could review it.

Karleen Jakowski-we are in our first year of our three-year plan. There's an Annual Update process, so we just did the listening sessions. We had a lot of fiscal changes this year, an entire transition of our county financial system, so we are still waiting for some actuals. We can't finalize some fiscal things, so we will be a little behind. I am keeping to the commitment to bring it here when it's ready, so we have lots of time to talk about it. I will say that MHSA funding has been volatile. Last year, our revenue was much lower than anticipated, which is really problematic. But then we are hopeful for some upswings on some revenue, which will be great because we have been having to spend down fund balance to pay for the contracts because we budgeted based on the projections. It will be interesting review to go through with you all, but we will be beyond July here.

Jonathan Raven-let's take them one at a time in a discussion and maybe get a motion on whether to change the bylaws. Budget and Finance, any thoughts on whether the Budget and Finance, Program, and Community Outreach and Engagement remain a standing committee?

Niki King-believes Budget should remain standing committee.

Chris Bulkeley-they've made a point there should be certain community outreach and engagement that might be public. That might be the only standing committee that we want to have. What the standing committee should look like, I'm not the expert on that.

Maria Simas-can I make a recommendation? What I am hearing is that we have not done as a board a good job managing the communication and publicizing when things are available. So maybe what we need to do is add to our annual calendar a targeted period where we publicize, and we partner with NAMI or someone to get that word out to get participation on public comment.

Supervisor Provenza-I think at one of our last meetings when we were brainstorming was learning how to communicate information from the board and staff consistently through our community. It comes back to finding different avenues to do that.

John Archuleta-what we did before is work on navigation so there's somewhere people could go to get the information. We had listening sessions on certain topics that allow the public to share. NAMI does a great job at communicating with the public. But they aren't available everywhere. We would love to have them in West Sacramento.

Bylaws Change: motion that we remove the language of standing committees from the bylaws in Section 13 read earlier today with the understanding that we will be committed to having ad hoc committees by Maria Simas, 2nd Sara Gaines.

| Yea "I" | Nay | Abstention |
|---------|-----|------------|
| 13 | 0 | 0 |

Motion: Approved

Melanie Klinkamon-wants to be able to reach community for input. That's her only concern with ad hoc.

Jonathan Raven-we have to do a better job at public outreach. We don't need to have a standing committee to seek input. We should always be seeking input, and maybe we make a committee to work with NAMI on getting public participation.

Brad Anderson-public should be represented as much as it can be by us. I don't know if ad hoc is better than standing, but I'm willing to do the work of the board.

Maria Simas-with regard to standing committees, our problems are that we don't have a lot of public participation. For me, we address that with ad hoc. We need an outreach ad hoc to improve our community participation.

Ad Hoc Committee Assignments:

• Outreach Ad Hoc-Sara Gaines, Kimberly Mitchell, Melanie Klinkamon, Meg Blankinship, Sue Jones, John Archuleta

- Site Visit Ad Hoc-Sara Gaines (Chair), Kimberly Mitchell, Meg Blankinship, Brad Anderson, and Nicki King
- Nomination Committee Ad Hoc-Joe Galvan (Chair), Meg Klinkamon, John Archuleta, and Dee Olivarez

Time Set Agenda: None

Public Comment: None

Consent Agenda:

Mental Health Director's Report-Karleen Jakowski, Mental Health Director

Maria Simas-in therapeutic foster care, that's going to be released for RFP. Will you be asking for volunteers?

• Karleen Jakowski-states yes. We just started our triennial audit. In our children's section they have asked a lot of questions. Somewhere like Yolo with 200,000 people, the potential for us to have therapeutic foster care will be slim to none. Sacramento has only four therapeutic foster care homes in their whole county with their population. We will issue. I am not hopeful we will get bids. We will reach out and ask for participation from board. Therapeutic foster care is new. If child meets certain threshold, then child would go into a therapeutic foster care where family bills medical as if they were a provider. Most are not willing to take on the risk. There are a lot of challenges in the actual benefits. We are on track to have RFP issued at end of month. We will reach out to Jonathan to ask for a volunteer from the board.

Maria Simas-I see the budget is coming up for presentation in May, so those are your proposals. Is that going to come back in some format to us?

• Karleen Jakowski-I don't know what the format will be for this. I just know there is county presentation and then work with Fiscal to bring a presentation back here.

Meg Blankinship-you note the high-tech call center transition has gone well. What's the metric?

• Karleen Jakowski-we didn't have any issues with calls going from one agency to another. Was nervous about transfer over of calls on day of, but that part went seamlessly. In terms of ongoing opportunities, the provider needs to learn our system. There will be some ongoing training. Considering we just launched at end of March, it's going fairly well. We were holding our breath and crossing our fingers, and that part went fine.

Jonathan Raven-Jonathan made public comment at last BOS. There were strong feelings about the significant issue with Partnership Health and Dignity contract not being renewed and the 7000 Yolo County residents losing all their doctors, aside from the mental health providers because that's a different system. One of most vocal was Supervisor Provenza. Maybe, Karleen, you can give us an update. I know Nolan our HHSA Director sits on the board at Partnership.

• Karleen Jakowski-on April 26th, Partnership sent a new proposal to Dignity, but we don't know anything more than that. It's a bit tense, but Partnership did send new proposal. As you have

seen, our Board of Supervisors sent over letter requesting state mediation. Staff initiated contact requesting update on state mediation process. Staff working with providers to assist with reassignment. 10,000 patients have been reassigned to CommuniCare OLE, 4000 from West Sacramento, little over 3000 reside in Woodland, little over 3000 would receive services in Davis. Believe Winters is being reassigned and some others are assessing their abilities to take on that many new patients at one time. Trying to ramp up their own services in order to take in that kind of influx. Dr. Sisson is working with medical providers at Partnership and with other providers to stay connected there. We are escalating issues as they come to us. MH services through Dignity are not disrupted. We don't lose access to 3B North, but that's a bit different. Primary and specialty care is the most impacted here. It's disruptive. Partnership managed carescreening process for mental health to establish Mild to Moderate. Could have had care through Dignity, but they will continue to get their behavioral health services.

Brad Anderson-is it only the Dignity hospitals?

Karleen Jakowski-Dignity failed to execute a new contract with Partnership and Aetna. They
corrected the partnership with Aetna but not with Partnership. Dignity has multiple contractual
Partnership issues. Had an order where rates were locked until a certain date. When that
expired, they requested rate increases, and they continue to negotiate and failed to come to
agree with Partnership.

Jonathan's Raven-states son somehow was switched to Aetna without advance notice. He was Partnership and then was all of the sudden with Aetna.

Karleen Jakowski-states his Aetna could be different.

Jonathan Raven-the impact for Yolo is bad, but the impact farther up is really bad in Shasta areas. They have to travel many miles to see their doctors. So, it's not as challenging in Yolo.

• Karleen Jakowski-states it's still quite disruptive for patients.

Public Comment on Mental Health Directors Report: None

Regular Agenda

Standing Sub-Committees:

Budget Finance-Chair: Joe Galvan, Members: Nicki King, Maria Simas

• **Joe Galvan**-we have refrained to hold a committee until issues were resolved in regard to standing committees vs. ad hoc.

Communications and Education-Chair: Dee Olivarez, Members: Maria Simas, John Archuleta

- Message from Dee Olivarez (absent)-have not had a meeting. John states she spoke of
 mission statement and provided an example. Karleen states we already have one, and it was
 sent back to Dee for review. Don't need to recreate the wheel, need to see.
- Maria Simas-read current mission statement to board.

• **John Archuleta**-just need to take inventory to see if we are meeting that. Working to ensure we are doing it.

Program Committee-Chair: Sara Gaines, Members: Brad Anderson, Dee Olivarez, Melanie Klinkamon

- Sara Gaines-we didn't meet today. We were looking at a questionnaire from San Francisco County. We were going to make recommendations on what we want to include in an anonymous survey.
- Melanie Klinkamon-seems like there needs to be some questions evaluated on survey. We
 do a consumer perception survey system wide. But this one is different. Karleen will look at
 it and County Counsel will look at it for legal aspect. Karleen will reach out to Sara to discuss
 separately.
- **Sara Gaines**-we already have some site visit documents, but they are still in draft form. Then we will make decisions about where the three sites are that we want to visit.
- **Brad Anderson**-will we meet between now and the next meeting? Can meet through Zoom since it will be through ad hoc.

Board of Supervisors Report: Supervisor Provenza-the board went back to Washington, DC on the annual capital trip. Chair Frerichs met with legislators for support funding for Crisis Now. We are two million short for the crisis receiving center. We are short for building cost but have funding for the services. We met with Senator Padilla, Congressman Mike Thompson, Congresswoman Doris Matsui. Response was favorable. I don't know if that's part of the original request, but we have the address we wrote to if you want to submit additional support for the funding. We have a phone call with Padilla's expert on mental health issues this week. To get nailed down some commitment. You may have received a request to participate, in case they ask a question, and we don't know the answer.

Jonathan Raven-what's the timeline?

• Supervisor Provenza-it's unclear. Because of how the budget process is working or not working in DC, the dates are unclear.

Mel Klinkamon-how confident do you feel this will happen? How can we support? Should we go rogue and send a letter of support?

Supervisor Provenza-our chances are good for one or both since we only asked for one. Given
there was only one request from our county, I think chances are pretty good. But sending a
letter in support is encouraged.

Criminal Justice Update: Provided by Chris Bulkeley

We had a Mental Health Court graduation, and we saw friendly faces in back. We will also have Mental Health Diversion graduations coming up. In next 3 months, there will be 11 graduates. We have one participant who makes incredible cookies. It's a significant number. It's a new program, and we are using CommuniCare for the services. It's less intensive as far as the severity of addiction. We are leveling up a couple of people who aren't successful and may need a higher level of care. We do have a new Prop 47 cohort where the application is due June 10th. I have talked about two other Prop 47 grants with HHSA and DA, so we aren't able to apply. So, Probation is taking lead. What I've seen in last two cohorts, they never have enough applicants, so it rolled over to larger grant. So, it's good Probation is going after

smaller court. Working on a Youth Court so funding could go to that, and there is a reentry program that Probation Department is looking at. A great way to provide feedback and get worked out is prop47atyolocounty.org. Input on what it should look like or be used for. In development right now. One thing we are getting feedback on, regarding the connection to care grant, is we don't have a dedicated probation officer. Maybe nice to have a member on this board to be on their committee. Feedback or ideas are being solicited. These grants are collaborative with different county agencies so they can be successful. It's a lot of work doing the community outreach. I will do a monthly here is what we are going to do and send them out. We haven't sent out those dates yet. One is going to be occurring soon. We did have addiction intervention court, and our person relapsed and passed away. It's very frustrating to add a success, and then relapse. He went into a holding cell to talk to participant and then I asked him to meet and do publicity and that is the guy who relapsed and passed away. We need to be aware of those challenges. This isn't the first time. It has happened before. That's the reality. We will have to expand knowledge on this.

Each individual success is what makes these graduations so worth it. We had a graduate come and talk about being 10 years clean, employed, and productive.

Public Comment: Jen Boschee-Danzer-upcoming NAMI Walks. We split off from Sacramento to keep all the money for our own programs. They invite neighboring small affiliates to join. The Sacramento walk does happen this Saturday.

Chris Bulkeley-we got our collaborative court to participate in the Yolo NAMI Walks and getting out there in numbers. When we participate in the Sacramento walk, 40% goes directly to Sacramento. It's in Land Park. There is a sense of community where people just get it. It's powerful.

Future Meeting Planning and Adjournment:

Next Meeting: Wednesday, June 5th at 6 pm at 25 N Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA in the Community Room.

Adjourned: 8:02 pm